
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
Notice of meeting of  

Joint Standards Committee -  Assessments Sub-Committee 
 
To: Councillors Fisher and Pavlovic (CYC Members)  

Councillor Waudby (Parish Council Member)  
 
Mr J Leigh (Independent Person) 
 

Date: Thursday, 23 January 2025 
 

Time: 4.30 pm (or at the conclusion of the Joint Standards 
Committee, whichever is the later) 
 
 

Venue: West Offices - Station Rise, York YO1 6GA 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 
1. Apologies for Absence    
 To receive and note apologies for absence. 

 
2. Appointment of Chair    
 To appoint a member to chair the meeting. 

 
3. Declarations of Interest   (Pages 3 - 4) 
 At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are 

asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other 
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on 
this agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the 
Register of Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of 
the interest. 
 
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it 
becomes apparent to the member during the meeting. 
 
[Please see attached sheet for further guidance for Members]. 
 



 

4. Exclusion of Press and Public    
 To consider excluding the public and press from the meeting 

during consideration of the private reports at Agenda Items 4, 5 
and 6, on the grounds that they contain information relating to 
individuals and information likely to reveal the identity of 
individuals. This information is classed as exempt under Private 
Document Pack paragraphs 1 and 2 of Schedule 12A to Section 
100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by the 
Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 
2006. 
 
Note: the private reports referred to above follow the public report 
on each item in the agenda papers. 
 

5. Code of Conduct Complaint received in 
respect of a City of York Councillor   

(Pages 5 - 46) 

 To consider a complaint of breach of the Code of Conduct received 
in respect of a City of York Councillor and determine next steps.  
 

6. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the 

Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democratic Services Officer responsible for this meeting:  
 
Name: Ben Jewitt 
Contact details: 

 Telephone – (01904) 553073 

 E-mail – benjamin.jewitt@york.gov.uk   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:benjamin.jewitt@york.gov.uk


Declarations of Interest – guidance for Members 
 
(1) Members must consider their interests, and act according to the 

following: 
 

Type of Interest You must 

Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests 

Disclose the interest, not participate 
in the discussion or vote, and leave 
the meeting unless you have a 
dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

Disclose the interest; speak on the 
item only if the public are also 
allowed to speak, but otherwise not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

Disclose the interest; remain in the 
meeting, participate and vote unless 
the matter affects the financial 
interest or well-being: 

(a) to a greater extent than it affects 
the financial interest or well-being of 
a majority of inhabitants of the 
affected ward; and 

(b) a reasonable member of the 
public knowing all the facts would 
believe that it would affect your view 
of the wider public interest. 

In which case, speak on the item 
only if the public are also allowed to 
speak, but otherwise do not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

 
(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or 

their spouse/partner. 
 

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must 
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations, 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to 
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal 
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992. 

 

Page 4



 

 
 

 

  
 

   

 
Joint Standards Assessments Sub-
Committee 
 

23 January 2025 

Report of the Deputy Monitoring Officer 
 
Code of Conduct Complaints received in respect of a City Councillor 
 
Summary 

 
1. To consider a Complaint of breach of the Code of Conduct received in 

respect of a City Councillor and determine next steps. 
 

Recommendations 
 
2. The options available to the Sub-Committee are as follows:  

 
a. Rule that the complaint is out of scope. 

 
b. Rule that the complaint is in scope and choose to (i) take no further 

action, (ii) seek to resolve the matter informally; or (iii) refer the matter 
for investigation.   

 
Option B is recommended. 
 
In either eventuality there are no rights of appeal to this decision. 
 

Background 
 
3. On 6th November 2024 the Monitoring Officer received a complaint by 

email from an Officer complaining that the Subject Member had made 
comments directed to them at a public meeting of the Council which 
amounted to disrespect for the purposes of the Code. 
 

4. The complainant provided a written explanation of why they felt the 
comments were disrespectful. Specifically, the complainant said that one 
comment made by the Councillor “appears to suggest officers have 
deliberately misrepresented or falsely reported information in a paper at 
the behest of members”.  

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



 

 
 

 
Procedure 

 
5. Under the Case Handling Procedure set out in Appendix 29 of the 

Constitution, an initial filter is applied to all complaints, essentially “is 
there a case to answer?” 
 

6. The Monitoring Officer is responsible for applying that filter except that 
under paragraph 5 of the Procedure, cases of complaints against a 
member of the Executive or Shadow Executive or a committee chair or 
deputy, must be referred to a JSC Sub Committee. This paragraph 
applies to the case.   

 
7. In all cases, the subject member is notified of the complaint and may 

provide comments. The Subject Member’s comments have been 
obtained.  
 

8. An Independent Person is also invited to give a view on what should 
happen next and this has been provided. The assessment of the IP 
should be considered in determining which of the following actions, 
under paragraph 9 should follow, namely  

a. to take no further action;  

b. to seek to resolve the matter informally; or  

c. to refer the matter for investigation.  

9. These will be the options available to the Sub Committee today if the 
complaint is determined to be in scope. Guidance on factors to be taken 
into account is offered in Paragraph 10 of the Procedure. 

 
10. The matters to consider in applying the initial filter are set out in 

Paragraph 4 of the Procedure: 
i. check that the complaint is against a councillor;  
ii. that they were in office at the time of the alleged incident; and  
iii. that the matter would be capable of being a breach of the Code. 

The Council has no authority to deal with complaints which relate 
solely to a councillor’s private life or things they do which are not 
related to their role as a councillor or as a representative of the 
council. 
 

11. Factors i and ii are plainly satisfied in this case. An allegation of 
disrespect is capable of constituting a breach of the Code. Members 

Page 6



 

 
 

must decide if there is evidence of disrespect which establishes a case 
to answer. If not, the matter is out of scope. 
 
The Code of Conduct (Constitution Appendix 14) 
 

12. The Code of Conduct states: 
 
“1. Respect 

As a Councillor: 

a. I treat other Councillors and members of the public with respect. 

b. I treat local authority employees, employees and 

representatives of partner organisations and those volunteering 

for the local authority with respect and respect the role they 

play. 

Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, 

and in the written word. Debate and having different views are all 

part of a healthy democracy. As a Councillor, you can express, 

challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas, opinions and 

policies in a robust but civil manner. You should not, however, 

subject individuals, groups of people or organisations to personal 

attack.” 
 
The Protocol for Member Officer Relations (Constitution Appendix 
16) 

 
13. The Council Protocol sets the context for Member Officer relations by 

reference to the following guidance from the LGA: 
 

Both Councillors and Officers are servants of the public and are 
indispensable to one another. Together, they bring the critical 
skills, experience and knowledge required to manage an effective local 
authority. At the heart of this relationship, is the importance of mutual 
respect. Councillor-officer relationships should be conducted in a 

Page 7



 

 
 

positive and constructive way. Therefore, it is important that any 
dealings between councillors and officers should observe reasonable 
standards of courtesy, should show mutual appreciation of the 
importance of their respective roles and that neither party should seek 
to take unfair advantage of their position or seek to exert undue 
influence on the other party. . .  
 
The roles are very different but need to work in a complementary 
way. 
It is important for both sides to respect these differences and 
ensure that they work in harmony. Getting that relationship right 
is an important skill. That is why the code requires councillors to respect 
an officer’s impartiality and professional expertise. In turn officers 
should respect a councillor’s democratic mandate as the people 
accountable to the public for the work of the local authority.” 

 
14. Paragraph 2.4 of the Protocol states, amongst other things, that officers 

can expect councillors to: 
 

 treat them fairly and with respect, dignity and courtesy 

 recognise that officers work to the instructions of their senior 
officers and not to individual members or political groups 
 

15. Paragraph 4.3 of the Protocol states: 
 
“Councillors should not raise matters relating to the conduct or 

capability of an officer, or of officers collectively, in a manner that is 

incompatible with this protocol at meetings held in public. This is a 

long-standing tradition in public service. An officer has no means 

of responding to criticisms like this in public.” 
 

16. Paragraph 13 states: 
 
“13.3 Where an officer feels that they have not been properly treated 

with respect and courtesy, or is concerned about any action or 

statement relating to themself or a colleague by a councillor and 

wishes to raise a grievance, they should raise the matter with their line 

Page 8



 

 
 

manager, director or the Head of Paid Service as appropriate. 

In these circumstances the Head of Paid Service or relevant Chief 

Officer will take appropriate action either by approaching the 

individual councillor and/or the party group leader. 

13.4 Where an officer wishes to make a complaint under the Member 

Code of Conduct this should be made to the Monitoring Officer 

and dealt with in accordance with the procedure in Appendix 14 of 

the Constitution.” 
 
The Local Government Association (“LGA”) Guidance 
 

17. The LGA publishes guidance on the Code of Conduct and on complaints 
handling which is referred to in the background documents. Key aspects 
of that guidance regarding disrespect are: 
 
a. The key roles and responsibilities of councillors; representing and 

serving your communities and taking decisions on their behalf, 
require councillors to interact and communicate effectively with 
others. 

b. Ways in which you can show respect are by being polite and 
courteous, listening and paying attention to others, having 
consideration for other people’s feelings, following protocols and 
rules, showing appreciation and thanks and being kind. 

c. Disrespectful behaviour can take many different forms ranging from 
overt acts of abuse and disruptive or bad behaviour to insidious 
actions such as bullying and the demeaning treatment of others. 

d. Failure to treat others with respect will occur when unreasonable or 
demeaning behaviour is directed by one person against or about 
another; 

e. The circumstances in which the behaviour occurs are relevant in 
assessing whether the behaviour is disrespectful and include the 
place where the behaviour occurs, who observes the behaviour, the 
character and relationship of the people involved; 

f. Public servants such as local government officers are subject to 
wider levels of acceptable criticism than other members of the public 
when matters of public concern are being discussed. However, the 
limits are not as wide as they are for elected politicians such as 
councillors. Officers do not necessarily have the same right of reply 

Page 9



 

 
 

to such comments as councillors do and councillors should take care 
not to abuse or exploit this imbalance; 

g. Recent case law has confirmed that local authority officers should be 
protected from unwarranted comments that may have an adverse 
effect on good administration and states that it is in the public 
interest that officers are not subject to offensive, abusive attacks and 
unwarranted comments that prevents them from carrying out their 
duties or undermine public confidence in the administration. That 
said, officers who are in more senior positions, for example chief 
executives or heads of services, will also be expected to have a 
greater degree of robustness. 
 

18. The case handling guidance highlights matters which may be suitable 
for informal resolution. These include cases of interpersonal conflict and 
allegations about how formal meetings are conducted. 

The Subject Member’s Comments on Procedure 

19. The Subject Member has raised concerns about the handling of the 
complaint as a Code of Conduct complaint. 
 

20. The Guidance is clear that whilst Local authorities may produce a 
complaint form for Code of Conduct complaints, it cannot compel 
complainants to use a complaint form. This Council has been careful to 
ensure that its complaints process is accessible and does not create 
bureaucratic barriers to complaints. The Monitoring Officer neither 
solicits nor discourages complaints.  
 

21. All submissions made to the Monitoring Officer must be handled so that 
fairness is afforded to both Subject Member and Complainant. The 
Monitoring Officer took the view in this case that a complaint, which had 
been received in writing, sufficiently outlined a complaint under 
paragraph 1 of the Code (respect) without requiring that part of the Code 
to be specifically cited.  
 

22. An extended period was allowed for the Subject Member’s response in 
light of initial queries they raised. 
 

23. The Subject Member expresses concern that the matter has been 
referred inappropriately to a public meeting. Again, the LGA guidance is 
clear:  
 

Page 10



 

 
 

“while there should be a presumption that a hearing following an 
investigation would normally be held in public (see guidance on 
hearings) there will be a strong presumption towards an assessment 
being treated as exempt information. The meeting may have to consider 
unfounded and potentially damaging complaints about councillors, which 
it would not be appropriate to make public because of the risk of 
unfounded reputational damage or the potential risk of prejudicing any 
future investigation.” 
 

24. The usual practice of the JSC sub committee is to consider initial 
assessments in private in accordance with this guidance albeit that each 
decision regarding exempt information is made by Members of the 
Committee at the relevant time on its own merits. 
 

25. The Subject Member has expressed concerns regarding procedure but 
has fully co-operated with the process. As part of their submissions they 
make an apology for any misunderstanding and express desire for a 
meeting.  
 

Options 
 
26. The Sub-Committee must now consider the following options: 

 
a. Rule that the complaint is out of scope. 

 
b. Rule that the complaint is in scope and choose to (i) take no further 

action, (ii) seek to resolve the matter informally; or (iii) refer the 
matter for investigation.   

 
Implications 
 

Financial 
 
27. There will be costs incurred in the event that the matter progresses to 

investigation. 
 
Human Resources (HR) 
 

28. Not applicable to this report. 
 
Equalities 
 

Page 11



 

 
 

29. Councillors are offered the support of an Independent Person as part 
of the Complaints Handling Procedure. The Subject Member has not 
requested the support of an IP. 
 
Legal 
 

30. The Monitoring Officer is required to consider all formal complaints 
received in respect of the Code of Conduct in line with the published 
Procedure for managing Code of Conduct Complaints. 
 
Crime and Disorder, Information Technology (IT) and Property 
 

31. Not applicable to this report. 
 
Other 
 

32. Not applicable to this report. 
 
 
Contact Details 
 
Author and Officer 
Responsible for the report: 
Frances Harrison 

 
 

 
Deputy Monitoring Officer 
 

Tel No. 01904 551988 
 

 
 
 

Report 
Approved 

√ 
Date 27 December 2024 

 
    

 

Wards Affected:  All All √ 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 
 

 City of York Council Code of Conduct and Procedure for Handling of 
Complaints 

 City of York Council Constitution 

Page 12



 

 
 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/guidance-local-government-
association-model-councillor-code-conduct#respect 
 
 

Page 13

https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/guidance-local-government-association-model-councillor-code-conduct#respect
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/guidance-local-government-association-model-councillor-code-conduct#respect


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	5 Code of Conduct Complaint received in respect of a City of York Councillor
	PRIVATE - JSC Sub Report 23 Jan 2025
	Annex 1 Complaint Details
	Annex 2 Subject Member comments
	Annex 3 Views of the Independent Person


